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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
FOR THE SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF TEXAS 

HOUSTON DIVISION 
 

RANDY PRESLEY, 
 

Plaintiff, 
 

v. 
 
CHI BAYLOR ST. LUKE’S MEDICAL 
CENTER,   
      

Defendant. 

§ 
§ 
§ 
§ 
§ 
§ 
§ 
§ 
§ 
§ 

 
 
 
 
C.A. No. 19-4575 
 
 
 
 
JURY TRIAL DEMANDED 

 
PLAINTIFF’S ORIGINAL COMPLAINT 

To the Honorable United States District Judge: 

 COMES NOW Randy Presley (“Presley” or “Plaintiff”), and files his Original 

Complaint, complaining of CHI Baylor St. Luke’s Medical Center (“St. Luke’s” or “Defendant”) 

for violations of Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (“Title VII”), as amended, and 42 

U.S.C. § 1981 (“Section 1981”).  Plaintiff demands a jury for any and all issues triable to a jury.  

This action seeks declaratory, injunctive and equitable relief; compensatory, liquidated and 

actual damages; and costs and attorneys’ fees for the adverse actions suffered by Plaintiff due to 

Defendant taking such adverse employment actions against him in violation of Title VII and 

Section 1981. 

PARTIES 

 1. The plaintiff, Randy Presley, is an African American individual who is an adult 

resident of Houston, Harris County, Texas. 

 2.  The defendant, CHI Baylor St. Luke’s Medical Center, is company that conducts 

business in Houston, Harris County, Texas.  Defendant may be served by serving its registered 

agent, CT Corporation Systems at 1999 Bryan St., Suite 900, Dallas, Texas 75201. 
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 3.  Plaintiff at all times herein relevant was an employee, de facto employee, or 

applicant for employment with Defendant. 

 4.  At all relevant times, Defendant was Plaintiff’s “employer” within the meaning of 

Title VII.  Defendant is an employer qualified to do business in Texas and employs more than 

500 regular employees.  

JURISDICTION & VENUE 

 5. Jurisdiction is invoked pursuant to 28.  U.S.C. § 1331, 28 U.S.C. § 1343(a)(4), 

Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended, 42 U.S.C. § 2000e and 42 U.S.C. § 1981.   

 6.  Venue of this action is proper in this Court because a substantial part of the 

unlawful employment practices described herein were committed in the Southern District of 

Texas, and, on information and belief, all records relevant to the causes of action alleged in this 

complaint are kept in the Southern District of Texas.  Venue is invoked pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 

1391. 

EXHAUSTION OF ADMINISTRATIVE REMEDIES 

 7.  Plaintiff timely filed a charge of discrimination (EEOC Charge No. 460-2019-

01472) with the Equal Employment Opportunity Commission (“EEOC”) on April 9, 2019, to 

challenge the discrimination suffered.  He received a right to sue letter on this charge on or about 

August 26, 2019 and timely files this lawsuit to vindicate his rights.  As such, Plaintiff has 

exhausted all applicable administrative remedies. 

FACTUAL BACKGROUND 

 8. Presley is an African American college graduate.  Presley is also a health care 

professional with more than six (6) years of experience working in a post-anesthesia care unit 

(“PACU”).  Because of Presley’s tenure at major medical facilities, he has obtained experience 
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in an array of areas including, but not limited to, providing direct patient care, preparing patients 

for procedures, maintaining records relating to direct patient care tasks and assisting with patient 

admissions, discharges and transfers.   

 9. On or about June 28, 2018, Presley initiated the application process with 

Defendant for the Administrative Assistant I (“Admin. I”) position at St. Luke’s PACU.  As an 

Admin. I, Presley would have been tasked with office operations, providing clerical support 

including answering telephones, greeting clients and visitors, making appointments and referrals, 

and creating and editing reports, spreadsheets and PowerPoint presentations, among other tasks.  

The minimum educational requirements for the Admin I position were a High School Diploma or 

a GED equivalent.  Based on Presley’s prior healthcare job experience and his collegiate level 

education, he was more than qualified for the position.  

10. After Presley applied for the Admin. I position, he was interviewed by Kimberlee 

Bridwell (“Bridwell”), the hiring manager for the position.  Following Presley’s in-person 

interview, he was instructed that he was not selected for the Admin. I position.  Unbeknownst to 

Presley, Frank Adamcyzk (“Adamcyzk”) was hired in the position instead of Presley on 

September 24, 2018.  

11. Adamcyzk was a Caucasian male that had lesser education and experience than 

Presley.  In fact, Presley has trained Adamcyzk in various other capacities and positions in the 

health care service field.  Furthermore, Adamcyzk does not possess a higher level of educational 

experience than Presley.  

12. After discovering Adamcyzk was hired instead Presley, Presley inquired about the 

basis for his non-selection.  Bridwell failed to provide any adequate response or give Presley any 

feedback as to why he was not selected.  However, after Presley raised a complaint regarding the 
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inequity of the selection process, Defendant has provided numerous inconsistent and shifting 

explanations as to why Presley was non-selected and a less experienced Caucasian individual 

was hired instead.  As a result, Presley filed an EEOC charge of discrimination to vindicate his 

rights and to contest Defendant’s discriminatory hiring practices.  Presley now files this lawsuit 

to initiate litigation to continue his pursuit of justice.  

CAUSES OF ACTION 

13. Title VII and Section 1981 Race Discrimination – Based on the above facts, 

Defendant violated Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended, and U.S.C. § 1981 

when is subjected Plaintiff to disparate treatment because of his race, African American.  

DAMAGES 

 14. As a direct and proximate cause of the aforementioned arbitrary and capricious 

acts, the Plaintiff has suffered grievous harm, including but not limited to: 

 a. Loss of wages and benefits, including front pay and back pay, 

 b. Humiliation and embarrassment among coworkers and others,  

 c. Mental anguish and emotional distress,  

 d. Sustained damage to Plaintiff’s credibility, and  

 e. Sustained damages to Plaintiff’s prospects of future employment. 

ATTORNEYS FEES 
 

 15. Defendant’s action and conduct as described herein and the resulting damage and 

loss to Plaintiff has necessitated Plaintiff retaining the services of the LAW OFFICE OF CHUKWUDI 

EGBUONU, 4141 Southwest Freeway, Suite 425, Houston, Texas 77027 in initiating this 

proceeding.  Plaintiff seeks recovery of reasonable and necessary attorneys’ fees.  
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PRAYER 

 WHEREFORE, Plaintiff prays the Court order to award such relief including the 

following: 

 a. Declare Defendant’s conduct in violation of Plaintiff’s rights;  

 b. Enjoin the Defendant from engaging in such conduct;  

 c. Award Plaintiff actual damages; 

 d. Order Defendant to pay Plaintiff back pay and front pay and benefits; 

 e. Award Plaintiff compensatory damages for mental anguish;  

 f.  Award Plaintiff punitive damages to be determined by the trier of fact;  

 g. Award Plaintiff liquidated damages.  

Respectfully submitted, 
 

/s/ Chukwudi Egbuonu*    
Chukwudi Egbuonu 
State Bar No. 24081838 
Federal I.D. No. 2365112 
LAW OFFICE OF CHUKWUDI EGBUONU 
4141 Southwest Freeway, Suite 390 
Houston, Texas 77027 
Phone: (713) 635-9488 
Fax:     (832) 426-5792 
chuck@celawoffice.com  
 

      * Attorney in charge for Randy Presley 
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